Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY PANEL B

Thursday, 17th March, 2011
at 6.00 pm
PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Council Chamber - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public

Members

Councillor Capozzoli (Chair)
Councillor Daunt (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Drake

Councillor Harris

Councillor Marsh-Jenks
Councillor Payne

Councillor Parnell

Contacts

Democratic Support Officer

Ed Grimshaw

Tel: 023 8083 2390

Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk
Policy and Performance Analyst

Caronwen Rees

Tel: 023 8083 2524

Email: caronwen.rees@southampton.gov.uk




PUBLIC INFORMATION

Southampton City Council’s Six

Priorities

eProviding good value, high quality
services

¢Getting the City working
eInvesting in education and training
eKeeping people safe

eKeeping the City clean and green

eLooking after people

Fire Procedure — in the event of a fire
or other emergency a continuous alarm
will sound and you will be advised by
Council officers what action to take.

Access — access is available for
disabled people. Please contact the
Democratic Support Officer who will
help to make any necessary
arrangements.

Public Representations

At the discretion of the Chair, members of
the public may address the meeting about
any report on the agenda for the meeting
in which they have a relevant interest.

Smoking policy — the Council operates a
no-smoking policy in all civic buildings.

Mobile Telephones — please turn off your
mobile telephone whilst in the meeting.

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year
2010/11
2010

Thurs 10 June
Thurs 15 July
Thurs 9 Sept
Thurs 14 Oct
Thurs 11 Nov
** bold dates are Quarterly Meetings

2011
Thurs 13 Jan
Thurs 10 Feb
Thurs 17 Mar
Thurs 21 Apr




CONDUCT OF MEETING

Terms of Reference Business to be discussed

The terms of reference of the contained  Only those items listed on the attached
in Article 6 and Part 3 (Schedule 2) of agenda may be considered at this
the Council’'s Constitution. meeting.

Rules of Procedure Quorum

The meeting is governed by the Council The minimum number of appointed
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of  Members required to be in attendance to
the Constitution. hold the meeting is 3.

Disclosure of Interests

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of
Conduct, both the existence and nature of any “personal” or “prejudicial” interests
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

Personal Interests
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a personal interest in any matter

(i) if the matter relates to an interest in the Member’s register of interests; or
(i) if a decision upon a matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting to a
greater extent than other Council Tax payers, ratepayers and inhabitants of
the District, the wellbeing or financial position of himself or herself, a relative
or a friend or:-
(@) any employment or business carried on by such person;
(b) any person who employs or has appointed such a person, any firm in
which such a person is a partner, or any company of which such a
person is a director;
(c) any corporate body in which such a person has a beneficial interest in a
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or

(d) any body listed in Article 14(a) to (e) in which such a person holds a
position of general control or management.

A Member must disclose a personal interest.

Continued!/......



Prejudicial Interests

Having identified a personal interest, a Member must consider whether a member of the
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably think that the interest was so
significant and particular that it could prejudice that Member’s judgement of the public
interest. If that is the case, the interest must be regarded as “prejudicial” and the Member
must disclose the interest and withdraw from the meeting room during discussion on the
item.

It should be noted that a prejudicial interest may apply to part or the whole of an item.

Where there are a series of inter-related financial or resource matters, with a limited
resource available, under consideration a prejudicial interest in one matter relating to that
resource may lead to a member being excluded from considering the other matters relating
to that same limited resource.

There are some limited exceptions.

Note: Members are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or his staff in
Democratic Services if they have any problems or concerns in relation to the above.

Principles of Decision Making
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

respect for human rights;

a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
setting out what options have been considered,;

setting out reasons for the decision; and

clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

e understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it. The
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

e take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e |eave out of account irrelevant considerations;

e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

e not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

e comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.
Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are
unlawful; and

e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



Agendas and papers are now available via the City Council’s website

1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 4.3.

2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

In accordance with the Local Government Act, 2000, and the Council's Code of
Conduct adopted on 16th May, 2007, Members to disclose any personal or
prejudicial interests in any matter included on the agenda for this meeting.

NOTE: Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the

appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Panel
Administrator prior to the commencement of this meeting.

3 DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST

Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a
Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being
scrutinised at this meeting.

4 DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP

Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.

5 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the Inquiry Meeting held on 10
February 2011 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

7  SAFE AND SUSTAINABLE - REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S CONGENITAL HEART
SERVICES IN ENGLAND

Report of the Executive Director for Adult Care and Health detailing the review of
children’s congenital heart services in England, the proposals set out within the
consultation document and the possible implications for Southampton, attached.



SOUTHAMPTON UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - SPECIALIST
NEUROLOGICAL REHABILITATION SERVICE

Report of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care providing the Panel details of
concerns received in relation to the specialist neurological rehabilitation service in
Southampton and the current situation, attached.

Wednesday, 9 March 2011 SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL



Agenda ltem 6

SCRUTINY PANEL B
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10 FEBRUARY 2011

Present: Councillors Capozzoli (Chair), Daunt (Vice-Chair), Drake, Harris,
Marsh-Jenks, Payne and Parnell
In Attendance: Councillor White — Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health

34. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED: that the minutes for the Scrutiny Panel B Meeting on 13" January 2011
be approved and signed as a correct record. (Copy of the minutes circulated with the
agenda and appended to the signed minutes).

35. DEVELOPMENT OF COMMISSIONING CONSORTIA IN SOUTHAMPTON

The Panel considered noted the report from the steering group supervising the
establishment of a Shadow GP Consortium in Southampton detailing the progress
towards forming a Southampton City Commissioning Consortium. (Copy of the report
circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes).

Dr Townsend representing the steering group of the Shadow GP consortium briefed
the Panel regarding what progress had been made in establishing a consortium of
doctors in the Southampton area. Dr Townsend detailed how the Shadow Consortium
had been constituted and who had participated in the selection of its membership. In
addition it the process to ensure that the new consortia would be required to
undertake prior to it superseding the Primary Care Trust as the primary commissioner
of health provision was explained.

With consent of the Chair, Ms Blingo address the meeting.

36. INTERIM REPORT ON THE PUBLIC CONSULTATION IN RELATION TO THE
FUTURE OF BITTERNE WALK-IN SERVICE

The Panel considered the report of the Chief Executive of NHS Southampton
detailing consultation on Bitterne Walk In Centre. (Copy of the report circulated with
the agenda and appended to the signed minutes).

With the permission of the Chair Mr Chaffey representing local residents presented a
petition directly to the Chief Executive of NHS at the start of the consideration of this
item

The Chief Executive of NHS Southampton City (Mr Deans) and Dr Higgins along with
Dr Townsend presented the main findings of the consultation so far and answered
questions from the Panel in relation to the provision of service in the area.

With consent of the Chair and Mr Chaffey and Mrs Turner (local residents) and Harry
Dymond (Chair of the Southampton Link) addressed the meeting

-14 -



RESOLVED

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

That the Panel noted how the consultation regarding the Bitterne Walk in
Centre had progressed and the what the next steps were in process;

The Panel noted that a general concern had been raised in relation the
difficulties experienced by members of the public in booking appointments
at their local surgeries and stressed the importance of ensuring that the
public are aware of how to readily access the appropriate level of care
without being inconvenienced;

The Panel noted the concerns raised in regarding to communicating what
services are actually available in the area;

That the Primary Care Trust provide the Panel with their final proposal
following analysis of the consultation responses; and

The Panel noted that of the options consulted upon, Option 2 had received
the most public support and therefore felt that this option was preferable
but, stressed the importance addressing of the concerns raised regarding
access and communication.

-15 -



Agenda ltem 7

DECISION-MAKER: PANEL B

SUBJECT: SAFE AND SUSTAINABLE — REVIEW OF CHILDREN’S
CONGENITAL HEART SERVICES IN ENGLAND

DATE OF DECISION: 13 JANUARY 2011

REPORT OF: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR HEALTH AND ADULT CARE

AUTHOR: Name: | Caronwen Rees Tel: 02380802524

E-mail: | Caronwen.rees@southampton.qgov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
SUMMARY

To inform members of the background to Safe and Sustainable — the review of
children’s congenital heart services in England, the proposals set out within the
consultation document and the possible implications for Southampton.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) To note the consultation on the review of children’s congenital heart
services in England;

(i) Indicate whether they wish to take part in any joint scrutiny that may
take place;
(iii) Consider if the panel also want to submit a response to the

consultation and the content of any such response.
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To allow members the opportunity to respond to the consultation.
CONSULTATION
2. The review process has included input from clinicians and parents. A range of

engagement activity has taken place, including national and regional
engagement events for parents and staff. A Patient and Staff Engagement
Event was held in Southampton, in June 2010 and regional scrutiny meetings
(which Southampton is represented at) have been kept up to date on the
review.

A consultation meeting is due to take place in Southampton on 24 May 2011, 6-
8pm at The Guildhall.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

3. The consultation document details the full range of options that have been
considered and rejected.

DETAIL



The ‘Safe and Sustainable’ review of paediatric cardiac surgical services in
England was instigated in 2008 in response to long-standing concerns held by
NHS clinicians, their professional associations and national parent groups
around the sustainability of the current service configuration. They believe that
surgeons are spread too thinly across surgical centres (31 congenital cardiac
surgeons spread over 11 surgical centres), leading to concerns around lack of
surgical cover in smaller centres and the potential for sudden closure or
suspension of smaller centres. Some of the smaller centres are considered
unsustainable, particularly as the new clinical standards require a minimum of
four surgeons per centre, each performing 100 to 125 procedures a year, with
each centre performing 400 to 500 procedures a year.

There are currently 11 surgical centres across England:
e Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, Liverpool (Foundation Trust)
e Birmingham Children’s Hospital (Foundation Trust)
e Bristol Royal Hospital for Children (Foundation Trust)
e Evelina Children’s Hospital, London (Foundation Trust)
e Freeman Hospital, Newcastle (Foundation Trust)
e Glenfield Hospital, Leicester
e Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children, London

e John Radcliffe Hospital, Oxford (surgery services are currently
suspended)

e Leeds Teaching Hospital
e Southampton General Hospital
¢ Royal Brompton Hospital, London (Foundation Trust)
A consultation document setting out the options for change was published on 1

March 2011. A summary document is attached at appendix 1. The consultation
runs until 1 July 2011 and covers the following key areas:

e Standards of care: proposed national quality standards of care to be
applied consistently across the country

e Congenital heart networks: development of networks to coordinate care
and ensure more local provision (e.g. assessment, ongoing care)

e The options: the number and location of hospitals that provide children’s
heart surgical services in the future

e Better Monitoring: improvements for analysis and reporting of mortality
and morbidity data



The four options included in the consultation document are :
Option A
Seven surgical centres at:
e Freeman Hospital, Newcastle
e Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, Liverpool
¢ Glenfield Hospital, Leicester
e Birmingham Children's Hospital
e Bristol Royal Hospital for Children
e 2 centres in London
Option B
Seven surgical centres at:
e Freeman Hospital, Newcastle
e Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, Liverpool
e Birmingham Children's Hospital
e Bristol Royal Hospital for Children
e Southampton General Hospital
e 2 centres in London
Option C
Six surgical centres at:
¢ Freeman Hospital, Newcastle
e Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, Liverpool
e Birmingham Children's Hospital
e Bristol Royal Hospital for Children
e 2 centres in London
Option D
Six surgical centres at:
e Leeds General Infirmary
e Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, Liverpool
e Birmingham Children's Hospital
e Bristol Royal Hospital for Children
e 2 centres in London
London
The preferred two London centres in the four options are:
e Evelina Children’s Hospital
e Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children

You will note that Southampton only appears in one of the four options. The key
points made about Southampton in the consultation document include:

o Assessment of the Centres. As part of the review each of the current
centres were assessed against a range of criteria. Southampton was

ranked 2" out of the 11 Centres.



e Southampton and Bristol — there are concerns that Bristol and
Southampton centres are not both viable in the same option as there are
too few patients in the surrounding areas to ensure both centres carry out
the minimum 400 procedures, without making potentially unreasonable
changes to catchment areas for the London and Birmingham centres.
Southampton is included in option B as it is based on the highest ranked
centres.

e Capacity. The proposed networks will be tested during the consultation
to check whether patients will flow in the way assumed. For instance
under Option B there will be examination of whether it is feasible for
families with Brighton and Redhill postcodes to travel to Southampton for
surgery rather than to London. The impact of the changes at the Oxford
centre will also be tested to see if the Southampton centre is already
performing 400 heart operations on children a year and what, if any,
impact there has been on the Bristol centre.

e Travel Time. The people of South West Cornwall and South Wales would
be adversely affected if the Bristol centre no longer carried out surgery as
it is over three hours to Southampton or Birmingham. So Bristol has been
included in all viable options.

e Research and Innovation. Each centre’s capability was assessed and
scored. The panel found significant variation in the quality of research
and innovation at the different centres. Two centres were considered to
be excellent and these were both in London. Southampton, Bristol and
Birmingham were considered good (the second best rating).

e Paediatric Intensive Care Units. If children’s heart surgery is removed
from current centres it would mean the current paediatric intensive care
units would see a reduction in the number of children they treat. With the
exception of three hospitals (where there is alternative provision in the
area) all the other paediatric intensive care units in the other hospitals
would remain viable. However, Bristol Royal Hospital for Children is
considered to be most at risk due to the higher volume of cardiac cases
using paediatric intensive care units, followed by Leeds General Infirmary
and Southampton General Hospital. This will be explored further during
the consultation.

A briefing paper from Southampton General Hospital on their response to the
review is attached at appendix 2.

If some Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees consider the

recommendations for change to be a substantial variation®, this will require the
NHS Specialise Services to formally consult with those HOSCs. The 2003
Direction from the Secretary of State requires scrutiny committees to convene
a joint HOSC when two or more HOSCs consider that proposals affecting a
population larger than a single HOSC to be substantial. If such a joint HOSC is
convened the Panel need to consider if Southampton should be represented.
Given the impact on Southampton and the surrounding areas it would be useful
for the views of Southampton to be represented.

The Panel may also want to consider the merits of working with SHIP or the
South Central Region to submit a joint response.



FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

9. none

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

10. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Other Legal Implications:

11. None

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
12. None

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. Safe And Sustainable — Review Of Children’s Congenital Heart Services In
England Consultation Document Summary

2. Briefing Note from Southampton General Hospital

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. Safe And Sustainable — Review Of Children’s Congenital Heart Services In
England Consultation Document

Background Documents
Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information

Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing document

to be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Background documents available for inspection at: none
KEY DECISION? N/A°  WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All




This page is intentionally left blank



/

S
2

Agenda |

$S9WO02JN0 Jojuow
v— 0} pajuswa|dwl 8q p|noys swajsAs mau
Py} 816D noA oQq "espasip jibay |pjusbuod
he} YlIM UaJp|Iyd 1o} sjuswiypnaly o} Bulpjel
onu DJopP Ajipigiow pup Apjppiow jo Bulyiodal
Q. pup sisAjpup sy} Joj pajuswa|duwl aio
Ahnuu swa}sAs mau oy} BuipuswwI08l 810 S\

ALITYND INIENSYIN

e

sd|doad BunoA

puD UaJp|IYd 40} SBUWIO0INO dA0IdWI S81jUBd
1961D| Jama} ||IM “@d2uB||[@dXa pup Aljpnb anuy
9ABIYDD UDD Saupusd |pIbiNS Jabip| Ajuo jpy}
sisebbns jpy} @duspiAe 0} 8suodsal Ul UsASS
10 XIS 0} S8JJudd JUB.LIND || BY} WO} padNpal
aq p|noys uaip|iyd 1o} A1ebins ppay apiroid
1Dy} S|ppdsoy Jo Jaquinu 8y} (b} eAsI[eq oM

;9|doad BunoA

pup UBJP|IYd 10} SAIAIBS dA0IdWI| O} 8D JO
[opoul 1ybiI 8y} SYI0MIBU JDBY |pHUBBUOD
aly ‘Jsod ay} uj payds|bau usaq aApyY Jpy}
spaip Ul jJoddns yopalno aiow dojaasp pup
ISIX2 ABY} 9JaYM SBIIAIDS JUBLISSASSD |PIO|
Bulsixe uayibualis pup SadIAISS dJPUIPIO
-0d P|NOM SYIOMIBU 8SaY] JIomau Hpay
|pHUSbU0d b pp3| pjnom Asy} Jpy} jng apiroid
Aoy} 8102 8y} Jo} 8|gisuodsal jsn| jou aI1p
sa.jua? |pa1bins jpyy buisodoid aip s

SNYOMLIN L4VIH TVLINIINOD

g

$Spiopunys b

ay} Asy} a1y Auunod sy} SS0IID Ajjus)sisuod
papiroid 8q UDd 81D JO SPIDPUDIS Jaybiy
2InNsud 0} padojaAap Usag 9ADY JDY}
spJopupjs Ajijpnb jpuoipu pesodoid ay|

SIHLNID 1VIITUNS HIIHYT

6

14YJ 40 SAYYANYLS

:Seale ulew Inoj uo SMaIA InoA 81| pjnom ap\ ‘He1s SHN

pue ajdoad BunoA ‘sjuaied :palaajje 1sow ajdoad ayy Buipnjoul
S891AJ8S 1eay |eyuabuod Jo aining ayl uo MalA e yim auoAue wouy
leay 01 aY|I| pjnOM 8\ "SMAIA S 1o} a1jqnd 8yl yse 03 Sluem SHN
ayl pasiuebio aie saainlas Aem ayl 01 sabueyd ayew 01 JapJo u|

(NO INILINSNOI IM dY LYHM

J18VYNIVLSNS ONY 34V

BAI928. UBJIp|IYd 810D JO
Ayljpnb sy} @dupApD 0} Juswdojarsp pup
yoJpasas Buinuluod pup sanbjuyday
aAllbAoOUUl Bulisn sad14o0.d Buryiom

UJapoW SIBAI[BP JDY} BIIAISS JUS||9IXS UY o

alniny ay}
Ul @1AJ8s 8y} Jo AHjIgoUIDISNS By} 8INSUS 0}
swpa} J18y} pup suoabins Joy Bujuibiy JaLeg e

9spasIp JIbay [pHUSBUOD Yim
a|doad BunoA pup uaip|iyd Jo Juswipai} pub
2102 8y} ul Jadxa aa1opjiom pauipi Alybiy v e

suoypiado pa|jeaund
JoMa} pup sawii Bulom pednpay e

PIIYD J1oy} 98s
1Dy} Y40MJBU BY} Ul SBIIAIBS U} JO |0 pUD
sjuaind usam}ag UOKDIIUNWWOD paroidw| e

Atabins Buimojjoy suolypdljdwod pup syjpap
JaMa} YlIM Sa1puad |pIBINS Ul SHNSaI Jo|ag e

sylomau pay [pyusbuod ybnoayy
paJaAI|ap Juswpal} dn MO||of pUD SDIAISS
dlysoubpIp 8|qISS820D 210W PUD Jo}ag e

:2A3IYID 0}

BulAi} 910 am Jpym si sy ‘obupyd 1o} pasu sy}

paybiybiy eapy syuaind pup suppiulp padx3l

‘F1VNIVLSNS ANV 34VS

9JB SBIIAISS 8INSUS pue UBJIP[IYD 10} SBWO0IIN0 dA0Idwl [[IM
abueyn "palanijap pue pauue|d ale sadIAlas 1ieay [eHuabuod
S,UaJp|Iya YaIym ul Aem ay3 ul papaau si abueya anaijaq apn

AdYINININS ¢




‘Loz AInp | s1 sasuodsal i
104 a1ep Buiso|a ay] ‘maiA 1noA anlb 01 moy
noge sjie1ap puiy [|1m noA zg| abed ug

‘'NoA 10} upaw pjnom Asy} jpym pup
padojansp usaq aAby abupyp 1oy sjpsodoid
3y} YdIym ul ADm 8y} Jn0 SJ8s JUBWINIOoP SIyL

J9pISU0d 0}
NOA 10} sUOPPUBLIWIOIS]
1ay}o aIp a8y} ‘Ajjouonippy

J18VYNIVLSNS ONY 34V

UOpUOT Uj SBIUDD Z e
uaIp|iyD 10} |pHASOH [DAOY [olslig e
|pHdSOH s,uaip|iyD woybuiwiig e
joodianl] ‘|pjidsoH s,uaip|iyD AeH 1ap|V e
AJDWIU| [DIBUBY) SPaaT e

usIp|Iyd
10} |041dSOH 93115 PUOULIQ 1DBID) o
[oydSOH S,ualp|iyD DUIjRAT o

:2J0 suoldo N0} dY} Ul SaIUd
[02161ns UOPUOT OM| palijeld Byl

-NOQNOT

72====d7

UOPUOT Ul SBIUD Z o
uaip|Iyd 4o} [pjidsoH |pAoy [oislg e
[oHASOH S,uaIp|IyD wpybuiwlg e
joodiaAl] ‘|pidsoH s,uaip|iyd AeH Jap|y e
9|ISPIMaN ‘|04HdSOH UDWIBDI] e

-1V SIH1INII TVIIIUNS XIS

NOILdO

UOpUOT Ul SBIUDD 7 e
|DHASOH |pIBUSY UOJdWDYINOS o
ualp|iyD 10} |pHdsoH |pAoY [oislg e
|pjdSoH s,uaip|iyD woybuiwiig e
joodianl] ‘|pidsoH s,uaip|iyD AeH 1ap|V e
9}SDIMBN ‘|PHIASOH UDWSBl] e

-1V S4LNII 1VIITUNS XIS

NOILdO

UOPUOT Ul SAIUD Z o
ua1p|1yD 10} [piidsoH [pAoyY |olsg e
|pjdSoH s,uaipjiyD woybuiwig e
J191sa2197 ‘|p)dSOH plaRud|O o

joodiaAl] ‘|pidsoH s,uaip|iyd AeH Jep|y e
3[}SPOM8N ‘|P}IASOH UDWSBI] o

-1V SIHLINII T¥IITUNS NIAIS

d

NOILdO

-1V SIULINII TYIITUNS NIAIS

v

NOILdO

:aJe 91n1Nn} 8yl Ul S89IAIS [BaIBINS 1ieaY S,UsIp[Iyd apinoid

1ey1 s|elidsoy Jo uo11e90| pue Jaqunu ay) Joj suoindo ay |

A4YINIINS - ¢




Agenda ltem 7

Appendix 2

The safe and sustainable review of children’s heart surgery in England and Wales

Briefing paper for Southampton City Health Scrutiny Panel
Monday 7™ March 2011

The safe and sustainable review of children’s heart surgery centres began nearly two years
ago based on the premise that there should be fewer, larger centres for this kind of surgery
in England.

Our patients and their families, who come from a large part of southern England, were
reassured in the early stages of the review that the highest quality services would be
supported to develop as the centres for children’s heart surgery in the future.

The present situation is that the review has only included Southampton in one of the four
options being proposed for the future surgical centres. The review does recognise that the
option featuring Southampton, Option B, places greatest emphasis on the quality of service
provided. However, the highest scoring option being presented expands the centre in
Leicester with Southampton closing.

There are a number of important reasons why the NHS must make the children’s heart
surgery service in Southampton part of its future.

Outstanding quality of care

Professor Sir lan Kennedy’s independent review of the quality of care provided in the 11
centres in England showed that Southampton is the second best centre in the country. It
scored more highly than Great Ormond Street Hospital in London and the Alder Hey Hospital
in Liverpool, both of which have been given a safe future.

All the specialists in one hospital

In Southampton, all the care a patient with congenital heart disease could need at any stage
of their life is available in one hospital. The co-location of the full range of specialised
services for children and adults is recognised around the world as a gold standard and it has
driven the very high standards of care offered in Southampton.

A history and culture of excellence and innovation

There is a long history of excellence in children’s heart surgery in Southampton which began
in the 1970s when pioneering surgeons first began to operate on tiny infants. The culture of
excellence that is the hallmark of this service has grown over many years and today some of
the best doctors from around the world apply to work in Southampton. This culture will not be
created overnight in a different centre according to a set of instructions and therefore
children from this area will be expected to travel further for a poorer standard of care.

Serving a large catchment

Since Southampton took Oxford’s surgical cases and interventions the service has grown to
four appointed surgeons and is approaching 360 cases per year. This puts Southampton
within easy reach of the requirements of the review with a catchment that covers 5 million
people in Surrey, Hampshire, the Isle of Wight, Berkshire, Oxfordshire, Dorset, Wiltshire,
Somerset, Devon, Cornwall and the Channel Islands.



Access to specialised medical care for the sickest children in the South of England

If Southampton is not expanded as one of the future children’s heart surgery centres it will
lose its interventional catheter procedures and approximately half of its paediatric intensive
care unit (PICU) will close. The PICU in Southampton is also one of the top two units in the
country with a mortality significantly below expected. The consequences across the hospital
of a reduced PICU would have a significant impact on the access that the sickest children in
the South of England would have to urgent specialised medical treatment.



Agenda Iltem 8

DECISION-MAKER: PANEL B
SUBJECT: SOUTHAMPTON UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS

TRUST - SPECIALIST NEUROLOGICAL
REHABILITATION SERVICE

DATE OF DECISION: 17 MARCH 2010

REPORT OF: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND ADULT
CARE

AUTHOR: Name: @ Caronwen Rees 02380 832524

E-mail: | Caronwen.rees@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

SUMMARY

This paper provides the panel details of concerns received in relation to the specialist
neurological rehabilitation service in Southampton and the current situation.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) to note correspondence received in relation to the specialist

neurological rehabilitation service in Southampton;

(i)  to consider the update on the specialist neurological rehabilitation
service from Southampton University Hospitals Trust;

(i) to consider if the change to the specialist neurological rehabilitation
service constitutes ‘substantial variation or development’ of health
services and what, if any, further engagement is required on this issue.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

To allow members the opportunity to consider the changes that have taken

place in relation to specialist neurological rehabilitation in Southampton.

CONSULTATION

2.

SUHT have undertaken a programme of consultation which is set out in

Appendix 5.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

3.
DETAIL
4.

Alternatives and options considered are set out in Appendix 5.

In July 2010 Southampton University Hospitals Trust (SUHT) wrote to
Councillor Barnes-Andrews regarding the decision taken to temporarily
relocate the neuro-rehabilitation service from Victoria House to a ward in
Southampton General Hospital. The letter stated that the decision was taken
as a result of temporary staffing issues and was intended to last until
September/October when Victoria House would re-open. A copy of the text of
the letter is attached at Appendix 1.



5. In December of last year Panel B were contacted, via Clir Barnes-Andrews by
a member of the public raising concerns that neuro-rehabilitation was now
taking place on a ward rather than in a dedicated facility. The letter is
attached at Appendix 2.

6. The panel subsequently (in February and March of this year) received further
correspondence on the issue including from a member of staff who works for
the specialist neurological rehabilitation service and has asked to remain
anonymous. Copies of the correspondence are at appendix 3. A further
anonymous letter received is an Appendix 4.

7. An update on the current situation in relation to specialist neurological
rehabilitation service has been provided by SUHT and is attached at appendix
5. The update provides details of the reasons for the service change, the
consultation undertaken to date and the future plans for the delivery of
neurological rehabilitation.

8. Both SUHT and NHS Southampton (who are responsible for commissioning
neurological rehabilitation) will attend the meeting to provide an update on
progress and respond to questions and concerns.

9. Panel members will want to consider if the change constitutes a ‘substantial
variation or development’ of health services and what further engagement and
consultation they require in this issue.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital

10. None.
Revenue

11. None.
Property

12. None.
Other

13. None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

14. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Section 11 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001.places a duty on strategic
health authorities, PCTs and NHS trusts to make arrangements to involve
and consult patients and the public in:

a) planning services;

b) developing and considering proposals for changes in the way services are
provided; and

c) decisions to be made that affect how those services operate.



Regulations under section 7 require NHS bodies to consult relevant overview
and scrutiny committees on any proposals for substantial variations or
developments of health services. This duty is additional to the duty of
involvement or consultation under section 11 i.e. other stakeholders should
be consulted and involved in addition to OSCs.

Other Legal Implications:

15. None.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

16. None.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. Text of letter from Mark Hackett to Cllir Barnes-Andrews dated 22 July 2010.

2. Letter from Mrs Wise dated 4 December 2010

3. 3 Emails received from a member of SUHT staff dated 20 February, 1 March
and 3 March 2011.

4, Anonymous letter received 1 March 2011.

5. Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust - specialist neurological
rehabilitation service

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Background Documents

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the
Access to Information
Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if
applicable)

1. None

Background documents available for inspection at: None

KEY DECISION? No WARDS/COMMUNITIES all
AFFECTED:




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Appendix 1

Text of letter from Mark Hackett to Clir Barnes Andres dated 22 July 2010
Dear xxxx distribution list to follow
Re: temporary relocation of neuro-rehabilitation patients for safety reasons

I am writing to inform you about a decision we have taken to temporarily relocate our neuro-
rehabilitation service, which is provided at Victoria House in the grounds of Southampton
General Hospital.

On 21 June of this year, we moved six patients who were resident at Victoria House into
beds within the main neurosciences department, in a section of Stanley Graveson ward.

This decision was taken because we could no longer assure ourselves of the safety of the
service in the light of a shortage of qualified nursing staff to support these patients.

The shortage has been caused by some sickness absence and staff departures coinciding
with a period of maternity leave which has left the service short of nearly 100 hours per week
of qualified staff nurse cover for these patients.

Clinical staff in neurosciences have carefully risk-assessed a number of options and
recommended moving the patients into the neurosciences department where their safety at
night can be supervised by the specialist nurses on these wards.

We recognise that this is not a suitable environment for longer-stay patients requiring
rehabilitation and therefore this measure is only a temporary action we have regrettably had
to take to deliver a safe service while staff recruitment is underway.

While the present arrangement is in place, we are working closely with colleagues at the
Western Community Hospital to ensure that patients continue to have access to the services
they require. We are now monitoring the service to ensure we understand the impact it is
having on access and the patient experience, as well as the safety and quality of the clinical
service.

Staff in the service met with patients and their relatives to explain the reason for this decision
and to listen to their concerns about the change of location. Every effort is being made to
enable the patients to have access to appropriate environments including the use of a mini-
bus to organise supervised visits off-site.

We will fully re-open Victoria House as soon as safe staffing levels are restored. Although
recruitment is difficult to forecast, we anticipate re-opening the facility in September or
October of this year provided we can do so safely.

You will be aware that there has been a long period of discussion between the Trust and our
partners about revising the model of care for specialist neuro-rehabilitation services. These
discussions are continuing, but | would like to reassure you that they have had no impact on
the decision we have taken or our determination to re-open Victoria House at the earliest
opportunity.

I am more than happy to speak further with you about this decision so please do not hesitate
to get in touch with any further questions

KR
MH



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8
Mve, L A‘Bgen\dﬁ@e*

Q. me&va Cown\

M\/. . Houney —ﬂr\duew‘i:, \/\l&&w\.w

Qoo QB \&ev?\

e, TThovald “1Romd Ty TeF
YQ)\H’QA\A,Q_—(PMK

50\)&'\&0».&@\(0\/\

=0\1¥ \H=z L[.ﬂ'begw\a@\ Ao\0

| Seon ‘\/\\/: K\)n)ww&% —T-Zﬂévew& ,

Howt veseounahed. Yo vole T\"\f\.e.— <o wutres P\mﬂ\”
N\AA& JeRonol Yo mckgw G,\Ixomg& wm neokfe suwees : ‘\
N\'m\e, Yo O\ \,@\L VOWE. CONMAW™ TN \/Q&/LC)JQ.[\\.—\/Oﬂ’LOV\.
core ov&\r\um@ w Cremerol %&F\'\'&k _

\ do \/1(;\}[)@_, ?\‘\J&\c ~—\'\ou\,\6\ @%GQ\%QQ o% S\)é&& CLOANE 0@‘

50&3%&3\«0\/\ od  wiovld \;LKQ/ Yo Jro\Ke, B UULO\M.QA:L\\ o{
éﬁ)\w ‘\'Tw&, “\"O %‘F\w e

W Qool oux ldexT =ou ;/\)[r\dvewo‘ &Fvﬁ ne! Ol URAA
w Ve WYouse (\!.H> Ry R Q)J'\‘A&Ox \oveura. W wy
'\v\, oL VOO A'No\?%'\c, O\QQ\&%’\'— lode. QOO0 . \Vk\'\w\\\ \/\Q m&
WRMNO - ;K\'QM‘&NQ, AN ‘\v\ L,ov@\ov\ ~ "r\«\m O UM \OQ&@\O&P—\E&,
A Aadvew ‘s own \/\ow&'\&' WA &oﬁ&mw»\o\mw W wo

\Dw‘i’m&e %0{@\ Yo @omﬁm\é ve woved Yo V.H R)w e

V\QXJY' &AV = Ve CO \JQ/»&

Ol o sk o% : Y omié@b\ W wexe woaned, el ._
Rndveral AN suvve . fow e @5 & e ‘w@m&\&
Moved. oW OWA O 903‘5\\0\9, P MMAIM! oW W

e Yo a \DO\J\Q\&SG’_&\, VQ&Q:\B&'\\}Q, &’l\'é&@_ (\%& ‘\\/\Q_



Hnl Wl awvwede o A O wowihy OQ\'QN P o\cc;\d%d'\
\/kQ \&‘JCL% '\V\ o w\r&&f\ Q\/wuw w\'\‘\r\ VA O cov\,\vo\\ed\ MO\JQMW‘\V
+v oshll veuu \owl ow e cowa scal® . Howevww, Il
wmowht  loPen Tadvewt  was ahle ‘o move \00&3& o
s Q\o:‘v withe s Qhow&;& C Hiy velode comfinmese w
V:w\'\owh Aoates P\"Q&{O ote. bur W hodl beew

S%\:\ \DCKQK mw'xw&zPdec*@— SYORCN O\VO&-\% 0% \\R)Q

’-_\_gpdu& Phndvewa (R Mmoo ouh s Wa o ecout \/\L
Holo d%\/\lc@v w\«o WZWe. conex \DCN nowl M\x w\??, Wos
verrimned Yo wovK. Fe dvives o cdapled cow A
e sodls e VaE v Ueived commwiiescimn, = we
use \(\"L& viaWr ouw [ wowd. | e \eados o \/LO\PP ‘%,\\\
~ \B\mc}\\,\c\,\\\l& %)9_. | comuot QMMP\(\OLS‘.\%' Ao UL ;§Lot‘f
"\'\\XB .\% o&foﬁ\k\& 0&%”\&)\/ ‘\)V\SL QML QA 21 S\)P\QW\C ~
cone W veooed. m VK . A cleow %W\Q 03{ ot
s Yoe. salmuesl. Wit Fag Q&\K\' veloda i Hodho w

QJU\\J—\VOV\\N\QA%'-

fou Qoo uthomde < | weved OJO\f;!\ ‘o
ioﬁxmwu\/o&\/\ me Thil WL QO\)\.(&\AVQ\:;P\MM\ dveml A
\\QXP a\JPPo\TIC,/ \f(\M . Own a o\&x\s bage we were aele bo
oe .tvwo\veﬁL wr\x\, Yhe cone he VQ_C.Q):JOQ.& ~N ol ?L:\J&\:~
hawdh —\\mo, VOCE IR slowl vecoveru . Rvep-ou - & l.\\/\
NS e \-\\E:)\D. V\\\v).\gif Yo oovoow, 3 Mximucémf}\i
lowsms wvane W Veauk o yieied) ogui Wil ot
‘PQ—O‘?&&" Mot \W‘_QNM‘\\ eecouuye e km&%
owlw. VOO .\A—Q— mu&é\ \noé@, @wamm& MRS B0 WO \\'tw\
he wosie « TV @w @voa/wue& o %&3§ M Yo
\mﬂ\i: e ‘Mmo\féw \svaun Wal. ma W2 o)to ol
‘N‘wm& whin T oy uesded ?w b ~ s PWM\@



w oll Bt becomse | Wowe veesu®u leowntc
vom ave,w PRI v\u?e, st Jx\r\@, \39,4 cﬁ&ﬂ% o?

QOULQ, derovieed. sloove wo lowgdy xS . N oy
RN o\ O Q\ Q,o&, {s oc\“u m'\'% w\«\ﬁ}r\m v\@,w\ O\d\l\k\\'\'eé\ Q/

Mo aWe cone o o \c:\ne % vece»u\ W\Fﬁ\%)\‘
\(QX/\Q}O VN o\\\ ‘\—o 9:\'\/\.%\/ WA O WRLOW \l\'\MV\. “\L VAMAA

\/\O%P\Jm& e~ one wo ded ey ed o&.\\\‘nex \)w

poénm\% S\N \\, OMA URE_ \A,k\\'\ép“\ \:)O
one e %6 \iéé@ Wm\;gé\% VO WA Ojo \9,\»3 w&d\\mk deea

“Thave wioukd ORPESN Yo be vou

\ e de SIS
ot wmdwidualu ov as o % %S hhown «

Es‘ao\fb\weow& VeRICOWRLR oAl D\O\& Qw &UQSZR&&%\LLVQ&AD&)
W \‘c L weoslldle Yo see Wow e cow be {o\ﬁ\' WO

Yovo& e Wi \(\.V\A oL Wland wv\vovxm@\ﬁ N\ & \)0&97‘% ()%

\va WA ?«bw m@, m\oowvcx&\ Qw \@Ak

S\/\NQ_, % ANE x \/et_ Yo the Ay \A\\t& mw@_ vamcu\
AL QoA & wc& J\vam

\Acx\ QQN &*QQQ Q.OV\d\\\‘\O W M\J&_‘r \O‘L @;&vwg
d\\ﬁ ~ d&MAWOL\\& ; /\‘Wt&\ CowWe A W cowe
c(\)od\g \W\(‘ﬂowb\ v uwe%%&)mw‘\' \)om.,\\'l\n.@,&
%U\/ @m@% Core sTuoes | ouwrnde ogemel e VoUR
me,@\ S Qw otgnm‘\' S Wy QJ\OP MQ,V\L\ SYTOR M \\X\'
& eudlese \:.u\c oM Tl ?w svﬁ' c»% vAhoka

VoV Qm@

| do c\iﬁvec‘,me ?w\,ul\ QWe. \\'w\'\‘\‘ed\ —\vk M Q\w‘i’m\
?mmc.\ dwinle ‘wnd Dve vl alw

o
d\?Q\Q\x\'\' 6&,&\ SIOWY ‘\f) W\O\K& \SVC\' N deasion %
\w\'%&\e cowe. was &(\\ wooed. o \DQQQNQ_ Qwudw&



\[Q,O\\?QZ\'\FOVL&._ E—:\JW T\v& &oo\ H\swe_ (VARSI d\i&iu&&'\ow&
&\QOW—_\— WLO\)\\A&%\A,L aQN\}\Q,@.‘g 03{ V. H out s wia o
\L%‘\VO\}& Ar\/\,?.w& V\OJV \—o \OOS@, -‘r\\swu\ ‘.

\-\rvv\:'fr &OW \m\\ o&& 3:5\:\'\& 3\\‘\)\0\‘*\‘0\/\ WRROAR
W\{}e&'\"\ 0&1‘0\/\. o -\\/\Q_ QO\M\AJ(\\'\CQR_. H Sﬁrcr\re,& O,
S}V\N W pPose *@oﬁ "o cowwmitee wust ke
Towsuired P NHS whve Yawe owe Yo e

-

VAo S OV SX W \«Lm\‘\'\m SQA\‘)\CE% " Wwe uoun
mw&@-\reo\% &

\ Q—C\M\A@—\' SR \"\OW 'l'\' CCQUA \QQ. QU&'\_~ QQSQQ\\\.)Q %
ve,ckv&e‘\wave "\3\(& K)mo;\\'\&{e% Jr\mot\ gl aunolole
‘Q’?_DP\Q, 4o Yoo wAove <V - S\A%?\'Q,\.QMC\'. “Thauw Shovld
how e —\5\1\9, oww*{'mx Yo e cowmn \AAQS{\AX WAMORN &
o% SDQ_\_Q,\&& GUA A "5\\f_0\. QO\M/(O\@\Q Q/)(PQM&{L OVC\\/\SL
PwWelle puxke. Sowthwma we Weow \/%\Aw
-\Xuﬁ Jr\\sL Gro v v 9@@ VQA& a\f\mv&\\g ool .

\ \C/OK %wwm&i Yo vouwr commanSR Ui \'\(\'\-D\MK
SW %w %‘w'w& &O\)\N o\\l\‘m ‘D\/\_ Yo % MO&\'Q/V _

?fow«a &wm,v%\

— MRN | Jowen \Klise




Agenda ltem 8

Appendix 3

“rom: SR s R T T S |

Sent: 20 February 2011 19:41
To: Health Scrutiny
Subject: closure of victoria house

Hello | sent an email on the 17th of this month but unsure if it was sent,so im going to send
another.Appologies if you get them both.

| was unaware of your organisation untill recently,your web site says that the NHS are responsible for
informing you of any change made to a service.

Im not sure if they have informed you of our change so im going to let you know about it.

|
For 20 years southampton rehabilitation has been operating from a single storey building in the grounds
of the soton general hospital,called Victoria House.
It is a wonderfull purpose built unit that caters for people who have had brain injuries,mild or severe.lt
offers excellent facillities.Each patient has there own room,which allows them the privacy needed and a
little bit of home for them.Some of our patients can be with us from 6 months onwards...It is a secure
unit so confused patients cannot wonder off so offers safety.

There is a large gym area for physiotherapist to work with the patients,also a large dining area which
encourages patients to all sit down and eat together.Social interaction is very important when having
rehab.We also use this room for therapy and events such as bingo kareoke parties and relatives get the
chance to sit with there family members and have tea.There is a garden that is used by patients and
again therapy is used ie gardening potting plants anything that encourages them to get
involved..barbeques are a must as well for patients and relatives.Many relatives comment on how
different it is then the main hospital wards and how much it feels like home.

A large mdt room for meetings with staff and family members.A training kitchen so as the patients can
learn to use basic things again like making a cup of tea or cooking.

All our toilets and bathrooms are wheelchair friendly.All the staff are pasionate about rehab and the
happiness of our patients.VH is a wonderfull place and has had much apprasil from past patients and
there families.We offer them hope trust and security.

Unfortunatley 4 years ago it was decided that they wanted to move us up on to the top floor of the
neuro department on a basic ward.But after much discussion and viewing it was agreed that it would
not be suitable for rehab.

But in may of last year out of the blue we were informed that the move was going ahead but this would
only be temporary untill october.We would employ 2 new staff members and would be returning
back,and it would give the staff some acute skills.The patients started to show signs of deppresion and
there moods were very low.As a result there rehab was jepodised.Cramped conditions and poor toilet
access.Our patients were mixed in with the other patients of the ward so it was hard to give them
continous care.Although we have managed to squeeze a small table in a bed space for them to sit
together and eat they still either sit beside there beds or just lay on them.No one seems to be interesed



in what we have lost they just say at least the patients are all together.It's very soul destroying.Only
today one of our confused patients managed to wonder off the ward and dissapere for 10mins.

There were meetings held to discuss our future but none of the staff were invited only the ward sisters
and matrons.

Y <5 and | know that whilst we

remain up on this ward the rehab standards have slipped.it should'nt be about saving money and costs it
should be about the patients best interests.How can you put a cost on recovery

There is talk that they are moving rhumatology outpatients into VH which is an insult that the space and
facilities provided are going to go to waste ehile our patients are left up on an old ward with rubbish
facilities.It's a contradiction really it it was'nt suitable 4 years ago why should it be suitable now.

None of these decisions have gone out to public consultation because if they had there would have been
an uproar.staffare frightened to speak up incase it jeperdises the jobs but | feel so strongly about ehat
has happened | had to write and tell you.l would like to remain annonymous if possible

Disclaimer

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed.

Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Trust unless explicitly

stated otherwise.

If you have received this e-mail in error please delete it and contact the Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust Helpdesk on:-
023 80796000

The information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

Unless the Information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this e-mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.
This footnote also confirms that this email message has been checked for computer viruses.

Please visit our website at http://www.suht.nhs.uk

Think of the environment. Please avoid printing this e-mail unnecessarily



From: Cordell, Judy On Behalf Of Democratic Services

Sent: 02 March 2011 08:47

To: Rees, Caronwen; Grimshaw, Ed

Subject: FW: FOLLOW UP TO CLOSURE OF VICTORIA HOUSE

Judy Cordell

Senior Democratic Support Officer
Legal and Democratic Services
Southampton City Council

Tel: (023) 8083 2766

Fax: (023) 8083 2424

This email is confidential but may have to be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 1998 or the
Environmental Information Regulations 2004. If you are not the person or organisation it was meant for, apologies, please ignore it, delete it
and nofify us. SCC does not make legally binding agreements or accept formal notices/proceedings by email. E-mails may be monitored.

From:
Sent: 01 March 2011 17:22

To: Democratic Services

Subject: FOLLOW UP TO CLOSURE OF VICTORIA HOUSE

As you aware victoria house has been closed to rehabilitation and is going to be used for outpatients,it is
disgusting the way it is being done.Eveytime the sister of the ward is away they start wanting to get in
and get rid of equipment.We have no storage space for anything that has been left in the unit.Some of
the equipment is very expensive and has been donated by ex patients.They are basically saying that if it
has'nt been moved by the 7th of this month it will be got rid of.| am disgusted and almost ashamed to
say | work for this trust.

We cannot expect the sister of e neuro to allow us to bring the equipment up to her ward to store we
have already took 6 of there bed spaces.Ther are no rooms for our doctors to have meetings with

familys

| wish | had emailed you guys a lot sooner then maybe just maybe you could of helped and even put a
stop to this..

I love what | do but | have to say | do not enjoy working for the suht

Disclaimer

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed.

Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Trust unless explicitly
stated otherwise.

If you have received this e-mail in error please delete it and contact the Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust Helpdesk on:-
023 80796000

The information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

Unless the Information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this e-mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.

This footnote also confirms that this email message has been checked for computer viruses.

Please visit our website at http:/ww.suht.nhs.uk

Think of the environment. Please avoid printing this e-mail unnecessarily






From:
Sent: 03 March 2011 14:13
To: Rees, Caronwen
Subject:

Hello caron,just thought id mail you, | know there is a meeting scheduled for the 17th of this month
at the civic centre but | wanted to inform you that we have been asked to get all of our equipment out
of Vicky house by this Monday as they are going to start building work, now im not sure if this has been
speeded up because the trust knows that the h.o.s.c have been contacted or not. But things seem to be
moving fairly quick all of a sudden. Am | correct in believing that if work commences on VH site we will
never return to the original site. This change is to make way for the move of rheumatology from RSH site
to SGH site ( were you aware of this?) Also one of the biggest issues regarding this "temporary move" is
that the staff were not correctly consulted before during or after this move, neither were the PPI's
involved in this.

It seems somewhat unfair that the rehab service has to suffer as a result of the modernisation of an
outpatient service. If you remember, back in 2005/6 the trust tried to reconfigure the service and move
us to where we currently have been placed. It was agreed back then that it was declared an unsuitable
location to provide the same level of service, so how can it be deemed suitable now. We have far more
complaints coming in from relatives and unhappy patient feedback, staff morale is low although this
does not directly impact on patient care.

| wonder if you would be kind enough to look into this with extreme urgency/

Many thanks

Disclaimer

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed.

Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Trust unless explicitly
stated otherwise.

If you have received this e-mail in error please delete it and contact the Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust Helpdesk on:-
023 80796000

The information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

Unless the Information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this e-mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.

This footnote also confirms that this email message has been checked for computer viruses.

Please visit our website at http://www.suht.nhs.uk

Think of the environment. Please avoid printing this e-mail unnecessarily



=

L4

-




Agenda ltem 8

Appendix 4

] was a patient at victoria house rehabilitation unit 3 years ago.l suffered a
suburachnoid hemorrage,I could not walk and had very limitted movement in my
limbs.My speech was also affected,] was very frightened.

I was sent to victoria house for rehab and was very nervous at first,but I must say the
staff and therapist were amazing,they made me feel so at ease they gave me the time I
needed to gain my confidence back put my trust in them 100%.Little by little I started
to regain the use of my arms and legs.

My family and I were always made to feel at ease it was like one big family.

But without the facilities I would not have been able to get the attention and rehab
needed for myself.

Having my own room played a big part for me as I was able to spend private time
with my husband and children.

Rehab is not just a physicall aspect but emotionally to and I had that support at this
wonderfull unit.

I was shocked and upset to find out that victoria house had shut and the service had
been moved to a normal ward area in the main hospital.I could not have imagined my
rehab being undertaking under such poor circumstances.

The hospital and mark hackett speak of trying to improve services and that the
patients care are always important,but I feel that it all comes down to money.

Why would they shut a perfectley adapted unit for people such as myself to make way
for an outpatients clinic,it does not make sence.

I have visited the staff up on the ward and was appaled by the lack of space.Even
basic needs like the toilets are not suitable.

I wish I had the power to stop this and reopen the unit as I feel it is a great loss to the
public.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Appendix 5

Panel B Briefing Paper

Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust - specialist neurological rehabilitation
service

Jacqui McAfee, care group manager, neurosciences

Background

Locally, there are a range of neurological rehabilitation services, of which the Southampton
Hospitals (SUHT) service is one. For a number of years the SUHT service was delivered
primarily from Victoria House, which is a single-storey building on the SUHT campus but
physically detached from the medical facilities in Southampton General Hospital.

The specialist neurological rehabilitation service supports patients who have had brain injury
and who require more intensive support to regain the skills of independent living.

Services for these patients are located in both the hospital and GP/community setting with
close links to social services. There are also some services located in the private sector.

The SUHT service provides the following for patients:
e Consultants with specific training in specialist rehabilitation medicine
e 24-hour rehabilitation nursing support
e Speech and language therapy, occupational therapy and physiotherapy
e Access to neuropsychological services
e Secure facility for wandering patients
e Access to space for group therapy work

During early 2010, nursing staff in the SUHT service at Victoria House raised some concerns
in relation to patient safety. The concerns related to

e Nursing staffing levels and the number of qualified nurses compared with healthcare
support workers. (raised April 2010)

e Access to medical opinions for patients during the night and at weekends (raised 1 & 2
May 2010)

The concerns were discussed by the neurosciences leadership team and the risk to patients
from the above two factors were considered against the disadvantages of a change in
physical environment for the patients. It was agreed that the risk to patients was such that the
service should be provided from accommodation within the building of Southampton General
Hospital in the vicinity of the neurosciences inpatient wards.

The move of this service was discussed with both rehabilitation nursing staff and clinicians
(7/5/10) and with the services patients and relatives (17/6/10). The service was moved on
June 21%2010.

Recruitment to vacancies commenced immediately and a letter was sent from SUHT’s Chief
Executive to the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (dated 22/7/10) outlining the
situation.



Timeline and consultation

e Risk to patients raised in April 2010.

e Risk assessment on staffing levels and staffing skills in the neurorehabiltation service
was carried out on 30" April 2010

e Concerns regarding lack of out of hours medical cover raised 1% /2" May 2010

e Outcome of nursing risk assessment and lack of medical cover discussed with the
Medical lead and nursing lead for neurorehabilitation - 7" May 2010.

e Alternative location for service was identified and risk assessed against the physical
needs to the service. Risk assessment 11" May 2010.

e Decision taken to temporarily relocate service
e Patients and relatives informed 17/6/10
e Unit moved 21/6/10

e Discussion with PCT regarding long term model for rehabilitation underway August
2010

Issues already identified with providing the service from Victoria House

The advantages are
e Patients were not be impacted on by other neurological services
e Patients had single rooms and space to wander in a secured unit.
The main disadvantages were
¢ Remoteness in an emergency — this remains an issue
e Medical cover out of hours — this remains an issue
¢ Insufficient trained nursing cover — vacancies now recruited

Alternative options considered which might have enabled the service to remain off-site
at Victoria House

Using other Neurosciences staff to cover in charge shifts for rehabilitation service

Rejected due to staff shortages already identified as a significant risk in other areas of the
unit in which nurses had similar skill sets.

The service also considered the use of surgical rather than medical staff nurses however
those staff did not have the skill set required to look after rehabilitation patients.

Using agency staff

As staff would be required to cover for in charge shifts on a remote site it was not considered
appropriate especially as working “single handed” on night shifts.



Block booking of NHSP (NHS agency) shifts

Previous experience is that staff supplied are not consistent and service has been known to
have relatively high cancellation rate. As with Thornbury the appropriateness of a temporary
member of staff being sole in charge on a remote site remained an issue.

Current position.

The service is currently provided from a six-bedded area within the main neurosciences
wards in Southampton General Hospital. The area is separated from the rest of the inpatient
accommodation and remains an interim arrangement for the service.

The service currently provides

e Consultants with specific training in specialist rehabilitation medicine - Patients are still
under the same Consultant

e 24-hour rehabilitation nursing support — nursing staff relocated with the pts.

e Speech and language, occupational therapy and physiotherapy staff all relocated with
the service

e Access to neuropsychological
e Referral protocols, service philosophy and service model have not changed
e Steps have been taken to optimise the environment for rehabilitation patients.

e There is access to the gymnasium in neurosciences and patients still have access to
the garden and minibus

Although the service has now recruited to its nursing vacancies, the problems remain with
regard to out of hour's medical cover and the service has not moved back into its previous
accommodation.

The reason why the service has not been moved back to Victoria House is that there remain
concerns about lack of medical cover and also, since the temporary move was made, the
Trust has begun working with local commissioners to identify the longer-term options for
these rehabilitation services. The lead nurse and consultant for the service are fully engaged
in this process.

It is now considered preferable to continue to provide the service from Stanley Graveson
until such time as the intentions of the commissioners for the long term future of
neurological rehabilitation services are clear and agreed. SUHT is also currently working
on a strategy for the delivery of all rehabilitation services, allied in part to its development
as a Major Trauma Centre. Neurological rehabilitation services will form a significant part
of that strategy.

The risk to the service of moving them to Victoria House and then on again to a new location
is considered to outweigh that of providing the service in the current accommodation. This is
supported by staff in the service.



It is accepted widely that Victoria House is not a suitable location for the long term for the
provision of specialist neurological rehabilitation services.
The space that is currently vacant in Victoria House is currently being considered by SUHT
as potential accommodation for the rheumatology outpatient service, which is currently
located in rented space at the Royal South Hants hospital.

SUHT would like to work with the scrutiny panel to ensure appropriate patient and public
involvement in this service.



	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Including Matters Arising)
	7 Safe And Sustainable - Review Of Children's Congenital Heart Services In England
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust  -  Specialist Neurological Rehabilitation Service
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


